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Assets:

Cash and investments:
Cash & cash equivalents (Note 3)
Investments, at cost

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Accounts Receivable
Accrued governmental fransfers
Fines receivable
Grants
Interest

Due toffrom other funds

Inventory

Other

Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments, at cost

Capital assets:
Land and construction in process
Depreciable buildings, property, equipment and
infrastructure, net of depreciation (Notes 1 & 3}

Deferred charges:
Bond issue cost (net of accumulated
- amortization) (Note 1)

~ " Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Cash overdraft
Accrued compensated absences payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other governmenis
Grants payable
Contract payable
Contribution payable
Defarred revenues
Notes payable (Note 3)
Real estate mortgage loan
Sales tax notes payable

Total liahilities

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Other purposes
Economic Development
Unassigned

( ) Total net assets

The accompanying notes are an integ

CITY OF DUNCAN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
December 31, 2010

Primary Government
Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ 707,851 § 51,627 § 759,378 § 1,377,138
1,013,799 10,788,037 11,801,836 2,278,022
188,431 5,198,252 5,386,683 -
2,140,232 - 2,140,232 -
132,363 - 132,363 -
65,392 545,701 611,093 -
- - - 337
7,100 - 7,100 -
- 45,361 45,361 5,299
- - - 22,940
- 2,744,846 2,744,846 1,785
- 5,644,184 5,644,184 6,808
1,062,353 16,381,292 17,443,645 661,886
50,186,970 50,031,978 100,218,948 0,203,727
- 1,032,389 1,032,389 -
$ 55,604,491 $ 02,463,567 $ 147,068,058 $§ 13,557,942
% 798,186 § 1,709,022 $ 2,507,208 $ 14,266
1,085,139 251,958 1,337,097 -
- 516,891 516,891 -
32,843 - 32,843 -
- 17,914,535 17,914,535 -
46,549 - 46,549 50,088
- 42,211,999 42,211,999 -
- - - 4,170,895
1,062,717 62,604,405 64,567,122 4,236,139
51,249,323 9,474 173 60,723,496 5,694,718
1,200,377 - 1,209,377 -
734,880 - 734,880 -
- 6,467,313 6,467,313 131,920
348,194 13,917,676 14,265,870 3,495,165
$ 53,541,774 § 29,859,162 % 83,400,936 $ 9,321,803
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For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

CITY OF DUNCAN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Program Revenues

* - This amount does not include the dapreciation that Is Included In the direct expenses of various programs.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

Operating Capiltal Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)/ Component
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contribufions Revenue Units
Governmental activities: .
General government:
City engineer 119,938 § - 5 - - 5 (119,938) -
City manager 172,346 - - - (172,346} -
Finance department 271,754 - - - (271,754) -
Personnel services 80,823 - - - (80,823) -
General government 1,036,020 70,614 409,031 - (566,475) -
Total general government 1,680,881 70,514 409,031 - (1,201,336) -
Publlc safety and judiciary: '
City attorney 37,188 - - - (37,188) -
Code enforcement 72,909 - - - (72,909) -
Fire 1,485,685 " - - {1,485,685) -
Municipal court 67,439 469,035 - - 401,696 -
911 operations 23,333 - - - (23,333} -
Polica 2,015,898 - - - (2,015,598) -
Total public safety and judiciary 3,702,452 469,035 - - {3,233,417) -
Transportation:
Strests 349,856 - - - {349,856) -
Total transportation 349,856 - - - {349,856) -
Cultural, parks and recreation:
Library 246,606 8,842 g - (237,764) -
. Parks 238,701 - - - (238,701) -
Senior citizens center 19,896 - - - (19,996) -
Swimming pool 58,533 - - - (59,533) -
Cemetery 125,499 72,685 - - (52,814) -
Total cultural, parks and recraation 690,335 81,527 - - (608,808) -
Community Development 214,460 - - - (214,460} -
Health and welfare 87 461 - - - (87,461) -
Unallocated depreciation® 2,115,018 - - - (2,115,019) -
Total governmental activities 8,840,464 621,076 409,031 - (7,810,357} -
Business-type activities
Electric 7,266,368 8,472,248 2,811 - 1,208,691 -
Water 2,220,862 2,803,003 - - 582,141 “
Wastawater 1,077,704 925,108 - - (152,595) -
Solid waste 1,406,102 1,446,025 - - 39,923 -
Lake operations 181,264 59,019 - - {112,245) -
Financing costs 1,042,292 - - - (1,042,282) -
Airport operations 139,046 10,692 10,385 - (118,069) -
Economlc development 395,153 - - - (395,153) -
Total business-type actlvities 13,728,791 13,725,996 13,196 - 10,401 -
Total 22.569,265 § 14,347,072 $ 422,227 - % (7,799,956) § -
Componenet Units
Economlc development 590,494 406,304 583,442 - 389,252
Cuttural, parks, and recreation 92,522 67,784 8,373 - (18,365)
683,018 474,088 589,815 - 380,887
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Net (expense)/revenue
General revenues:
Taxes:
Sales, use, gas excise and clgarette taxes
Hotel/motel taxes
Franchise taxes
E-&11
Intergovernmental
Property
Investment earnings
Reimbursements
Miscellaneous
Lease recelpts
Sale of property
Gains/({losses) on investmants
Transfers -
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning of year

Prior period adjustment

Net assets - beginning of year restated

Net assets - end of year

CITY OF DUNCAN
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For Six Months Ended December 21, 2010

Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes In Net Assets

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
(7.810,357) 10,401 (7,799,956) 380,887
5,848,088 898,996 6,747,084 -
114,361 - 114,361 -
253,103 - 253,103 -
32,337 - 32,337 -
131,957 - 131,957 -
8,782 - 8,782 -
10,756 1,017,874 1,028,630 48,264
363,872 23,735 387,807 -
84,456 180,170 244,625 -
9,932 - 9,932 -
8,350 5,115 13,465 20,000
169,636 47,634 217,170 -
{1,261,164) 1,245,164 (16,000} -
5,754,365 3,418,688 9,173,053 68,264
(2,055,992) 3,428,089 1,373,097 449,151
57,811,113 39,806,662 97,617,775 8,872,652
{2,213,347) {13,376,589) {15,589,936) -
55,697,766 25,430,073 82,027,839 8,872,652
53,541,774 § 29,859,162 $ 83,400,936 $ 9,321,803

The accompanying hotes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

5



)

Assets:

Cash and investments:
Cash 8 cash equivalents (Note 3)
Investments, at cost

CITY OF DUNCAN
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2010

Receivables {net of allowance for uncollectibles):

Franchise taxes
Hotel-mote! taxes
Accruad governmental transfers
Grants
Other receivables
Due from.other funds {Note 2D)

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Cash overdraft

Wages payable

Deferred revenue

Due to other funds {Note 3)
Due to other governments

Total liabilities

Fund balance:

Restriced for:
Gapital projects
Other purposes

Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund equity

Capital Other Total
General Improvement Government Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
$ 760 $ 10,337 $ 696,764 $ 707,851
18,194 995,605 - 1,013,799
172,185 “ - 172,185
15,248 - - 15,246
1,435,686 628,090 76,456 2,140,232
65,392 - - 65,392
1,000 - - 1,000
- 7,100 12,369 19,469
$ 1,708,463 $ 1,641,132 § 785,579 $ 4,135,174
3 116,515 $ 431,755 §$- 6,103 $ 554,373
243813 - - 243,813
- - 46,549 46,549
12,369 - - 12,369
32,843 - - 32,843
- 405,540 431,755 52,652 889,947
- 1,200,377 - 1,209,377
- - 734,880 734,880
1,302,923 - (1,953) 1,300,970
1,302,923 1,209,377 732,927 3,245,227
$ 1,708,463 § 1,641,132 § 785579 $ 4,135,174

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the baslc financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
RECONCILATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF
NET ASSETS
December 31, 2010

Total Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 3,245,227

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Some of the City's reveneus will be collected ater year-end but are not avallable soon

enough to pay for the current period’s expenditures and, therfore, are defarred in
governmental funds: Fines and forfeitures (net of allowance for uncollectibility) 132,363

Accrued compensated absenses payable {1,085,139)

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds, These assets consist of:

Land $ 825,988
Construction in process 236,365
Buildings & Improvements 13,633,914
Fumiture & Equipment 9,436,703
Infrastructure ' 180,875,270
Accumulated Depreciation {153,759,007)
Total 51,249,323
Net assets of governmental activities $ 53,541,774

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
7



CITY OF DUNCAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

Capital Other Total
General Improvement  Governmental  Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Cemetery revenues $ 58,173 § - 8 14,512 $ 72,685
Charges for services 32,643 - : - 32,643
Cigarette taxes 49,343 24,672 - 74,015
Donations 100 - 3,388 3,488
Franchise taxes 253,103 - - 253,103
Gas excise taxes - - - -
Grant revenues 128,495 250,745 26,303 405,543
Hotel/motel taxes 114,361 - - 114,361
Interest 1,010 9,746 - 10,756
Intergovernmental programs 53,601 - 78,356 131,957
Flnes and forfeits 336,672 - - 336,672
Lease receipts 9,032 - - 9,932
Library revenues 8,842 - - 8,842
Licenses and permits 31,7860 - 6,211 37,971
Miscellaneous revenue 64,364 - 87 64,451
Properly taxes - 8,782 - - 8,782
Sales taxes 3,647,224 1,772,687 - 5,319,911
Speclal assessments - - 32,337 32,337
Usetaxes 454,162 - - 454,162
Reimbursements 363,872 - - 363,872
Sale of sumplus property 8,350 - - - 8,350
Total revenues 5,524,689 2,057,850 161,194 7,743,733
Expenditures:
Current;
General government 1,453,894 1,966 2,551 1,458,411
Public safety 3,622,170 131,176 49,106 3,702,452
Highways roads & airports 263,279 - 86,577 349,856
Community development 214,460 - - 214,460
Health and welfare : 87,461 - - 87,461
Cultural, parks and recreational 677,646 - 12,689 690,336
Capital outlay - 1,436,164 4,000 1,440,164
Total expenditures 6,218,910 1,569,306 154,923 7,943,139
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures (694,221} 488,544 6,271 (199,406)
Other financing uses:
Galns/(losses) on investments - 169,536 - 169,536
Operating transfers in (out) 427,016 (1,700,180) 12,000 (1,261,164}
Total other financing uses 427,018 (1,530,644) 12,000 {1,091,628)
Excess of revenues over (under)
expenditures & transfers (267,205) (1,042,100} 18,271 {1,291,034)
Fund balance - beginning of year 960,717 5,870,131 (984,370) 5,846,478
Prior period adjusments 609,411 (3,618,654} 1,699,026 (1,310,217)
Fund balance - beginning of year restated 1,670,128 2,251,477 714,656 4,536,261
Fund balance - end of year % 1,302,923 § 1,209,377 § 732,927 $ 3,245,227

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the basic finangcial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governemental activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Revenues in the statement of actvities that do not provide current financial resources {(are not
collscted within 80 days) are deferred in the governmental funds. Therefore, the recognition
of revenue differs between the two statements. The following represents the net change in
deferred revenue for: Fines and forfeitures (net of allowance for uncollectibllity)

Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets report accrued
compensated absenses in the period incurred. However, Governmental Funds do not

- pay on this liability until the employee has left employment. The amount of the change
in accrued absenses recorded in the current period.

Governmental Funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
Government-Wide Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Asssts, the cost
of those assets is allocated over thelr estimated useful lives as depreciation
expense. This is the amount of capital assets recorded in the current period.

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the Government-Wide
Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets, but they do not require the
use of current financial resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not
reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
December 31, 2010

)

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
‘Duncan Public Dunean Economic Internal
Utilities Development Service
Assets: Authority Trust Authority Totals Funds
Cash & cash equivalents $ 51,627 % - $ 51,627 § 61,765
Investments, at cost 10,788,037 - 10,788,037 10,637
Restricted:
Cash & cash equivalents 2,236,072 508,774 2,744,846 -
Investments, at cost - 5,644,184 5,644,184 -
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles): :
Accounts receivable - 4,883,897 - 314,355 5,198,252 -
Taxes receivable - - - -
Annuities receivable - - - 418,804
Notes receivable - - - -
Grants 545,701 - 545,701 -
Due from other funds - - - -
Inventory 45,361 - 45,361 -
Capital assets: '
Land 1,654,194 - 1,654,194 -
Construction in process 14,727,098 - 14,727,098 -
Depreciable buildings, property,
equipment and infrastruciure,
o net of depreciation {Notes 1 & 3) 45,924,997 - 4,106,981 50,031,978 ' -
(\ - Deferred charges:
Bond issue cost (net of accumulated
amaortization) (Note 1) 1,032,389 - 1,032,389 -
Total assets ' 3 81,889,273 3% 10,574,204 § 02 463,567 $ 491,108
Liabilities: _
Accounts payable $ 1,709,022 . § - $ 1,709,022 § 4,130
Due fo other funds : - ' - - -
Accrued interest payable 516,891 - 516,891 -
Accrued compensated absences
payable (Note 1) 251,958 - 251,958 -
Grant payable - - - -
Annuities payable ' - - - 401,170
Estimated claims liability - - - 888,432
Contract payable 17,914,535 - 17,914,535 -
Notes payable (Note 3) : 42,211,999 - 42 211,999 -
Sales tax notes payable - - _ - - -
Total liabilities 62,604,405 - 62,604,405 1,293,732
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 5,367,192 4,106,981 9,474,173 -
Restrictad
- Ecenamic development - 6,467,313 6,467,313 -
( ) Unrestricted . 13,917,676 - 13,917,676 (802,626)
h Total net assets $ 19,284,868 $ 10,574,294 $ 29,859,162 $ (802,626)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
10 '



CITY OF DUNCAN
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

o
( ) Governmental
- Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Duncan Public Duncan Echomic Internal
Utilities Development Service
Authority Trust Authority Totals Funds
Operating revenues:
Pledged as security for revenue bonds & notes:
Charges for services $ 13,846,385 §$ - $ 13,646,385 §$ -
Unpledged revenues:
Fees, licenses and permits 43,166 - 43,166 -
Rentals 79,611 - 79,611 -
Other sources 137,003 - 137,003 -
Cigar taxes - 12,336 12,336 -
Sales taxes - 886,660 886,660 -
Grant revenue 10,385 - 10,385 -
Reimbursements _ 23,735 - 23,736 798,106
Contributions 2,811 - 2,811 628,123
‘Total operating revenues 13,843,096 898,996 14,842,092 1,426,229
Operating expense:
Personal services 1,488,105 - 1,488,108 -
Purchase of services 7,450,092 306,537 7,756,629 -
Materials and supplies 1,225,301 - 1,225,301 37,469
Other services and charges - 24 24 1,551,511
Bad debt expense - - - -
(\- ) Depreciation expense 2,088,521 88,592 2177113 -
- Total operating expenses _ 12,252,018 395,153 12,647,172 1,588,980
Income hefore non-operating revenues,
expenses & transfers 1,601,077 503,843 2,194,920 (162,751)
Non-operating revenues {expenses):
Interest revenue 908,849 19,025 1,017,874 1,404
Interest expense (983,339) - (988,339) -
Gain (loss) on sale of surplus property 5,115 - 5,115 -
Amortization of bond issue cost (39,326) - (39,326) -
Gains/(losses) on investments 32,520 15,114 47,634 1,496
Loan administration fee {51,453) - (51,453) -
Trustee fees (2,500) - (2,500) -
Total {45,134) 34,139 {10,995) 2,900
Income (loss) before operating transfers 1,645,943 537,982 2,183,925 {158,851)
Transfers in {out) ' 1,245,164 . 1,245,164 ;
Change in net assets ) 2,891,107 537,982 3,429,089 (159,851)
Net assets at bedginning of year 29,777,864 10,028,798 39,806,662 (216,307)
Prior period adjustment . (13,384,103) 7,614 (13,376,589) {426,468)
Net assets - beginning as restated 16,393,761 10,036,312 26,430,073 " (842,775}
() Net assets at end of year § ' 19,284,868 $ 10,574,294 $ 29,869,162 $ (802,626)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers & service users
Cash paymaents for goods & services & employees
Other operating revenues (payments)
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing actlvities:
Net change in due to/due from other funds
Nat change in inventory
Correction of cash from prior years
Operating transfers in {out) to cther funds
Net cash provided (used) for noncapitai
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition & construction of caplital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from the issuance of debt
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt
Loan administration fee
Trustee fees
Net cash provided {used} for capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
{Purchase) liquidation of investments - unrestricted
Gains/(losses) on investments
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivalents
Cash and cash equiivalents - beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation

Change in assets and liabillties:
{Increase) decrease in accounts recaivable
{Increase) decrease in grants receivable
(Increase) decrease in annuities recelvable
Increase {decrease) In accounts payabls
increase (decrease) in accrued comp absences
Increase (decrease) in claims Yiabllity

Total adjustments

" Net cash provided by operating activities

. Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Duncan Public Duncan Economic Internal
Utilities Development Service
_Authority Trust Authority Totals Funds
$ 15,325945 $ 883,558 § 16,209,503 § 1,469,241
(10,472,380) (306,561) (10,778,951) {1,561,662)
4,853,555 576,907 5,430,552 (92,421)
{7,100} (2,024) (9,124} -
923,297 - 923,297 -
(13,384,103) 7,514 (13,376,589) {426,468}
1,245,164 - 1,245,164 -
(11,222,742) 5,490 (11,217,252) {426,468)
(20,461,745) (304,486) (20,766,231) -
5,115 - 5115 -
11,634,989 - 11,634,089 -
{1,803,158) - (1,903,158) -
(1,059,869} - (1,059,869) -
(51,453) - (51,453) -
(2,500) - (2,500) -
(11,838,621) (304,486} (12,143,107) -
(5,910,616) (1,366,688) (7,277,304) 223,377
32,520 15,114 47,634 1,496
598,849 19,025 1,017,874 1,404
{4,879,247) (1,332,549) (6,211,796) 226,277
{23,087,055) {1,054,548) {24,141,803) {292,612)
25,374,654 1,563,322 26,937,976 354,377
$ 2,287,500 $ 508,774 $ 2,798,373 $ 61,765
$ 1,691,077 § 503,843 § 2,194,020 $ (162,751)
2,088,521 88,592 2,477,113 -
1,033,766 {15,438) 1,018,328 7,108
348,083 - 349,083 -
- - - 35,904
(328,258) - (328,258) 4,070
19,366 - 19,366 -
- - - 23,248
3,162,478 73,154 3,235,632 70,330
$ 4,853,555 § 576,097 $ 5430652 $ {92,421)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
December 31, 2010
Duncan Area Main
Economic Buncan Duncan Street
Development Industrial Hospital Duncan
Foundation Authority Authority (Unaudited) Total
Assets:
Cash and investments:
Cash & cash equivalents {(Note 3) $ 1,008,806 § 332915 $ 24,985 § 10,432 § 1,377,138
Investments, at cost 2,258,022 - - 20,000 2,278,022
Resfricted:
Cash & cash equivalents - 1,380 - 405 1,785
Investments, at cost - - - 6,808 6,808
Receivables {net of allowance for
uncollectibles):
Notes recelvable - - - - -
Interest - 337 - - 337
Inventory - - - 5,289 5,209
Capital assets:
Land 60,000 601,886 - - 661,886
Depreciable buildings, property,
equipment and infrastructure,
net of depreciation (Notes 1 & 3) 9,202,109 - - 1,618 9,203,727
Other assets;
Inventory - - - - .
Cther 22,940 - - - 22,940
Total assets $ 12,551,877 § 936,518 $ 24,985 § 44562 $§ 13,557,942
Liahilities:
Accounts payable $ 11,905 $ - % - 5 2,351 § 14,256
Due to other funds - - - - -
Contribution payable - - - - -
Defsrred revenues 50,838 - - 150 50,988
Accrued compensated absences
payable (Note 1) - - - -
Note payabie - - - - -
Real estate mortgage loan 4,170,895 - - - 4,170,895
Total liahilities 4,233,638 - - 2,501 4,236,139
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 5,091,214 601,886 - 1,618 5,604,718
Restricted 103,232 1,380 - 27,308 131,920
Unrestricted 3,123,793 333,252 24,985 13,135 3,495,165
Total net assets $ 8,318,239 § 036,518 $ 24985 § 42061 $ 9,321,803

The accompanying naotes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Operating revenues:

Contributions

Program fees

Rentals

Sales tax transfers from DETA -
speical projects

Membership dues

Grant funds

Fundraising & special events

Total operating revenues

Operating expense:
Personnel expense
incustry marketing and recruiting
Advertising and web page
Contributions
Office and occupancy expense

Professional fees and contract services

Sales tax election expense
Depreclation expense

Dues and publications

Economic development incentives
Community projects

Travel, meetings and conferences
Site maintenance

Miscellaneous expense

Insurance

Total operating expenses
Operating net income (loss)

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Investment income
Investment {(expense)
Insurance proceads
QGain (loss) on sale

$

Total non operating revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before
operating transfers

Transfers in (out)
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

CITY OF DUNCAN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN FUND NET ASSETS
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

Duncan Area Main
Economic Duncan Duncan Street
Development Industrial Hospltal Duncan
Foundation Authority Authority {Unaudited) Total
57,800 3 - - 3 1,223 | 59,023
152,039 - - - 152,039
254,265 6,000 - - 260,265
525,642 - - - 525,642
- - - 37,570 37,570
- - - 5,150 5,150
- - - 24 214 24,214
089,746 8,000 - 68,157 1,063,903
270,843 - - 32,080 302,923
172,158 - - - 172,158
- - - 1,440 1,440
24,491 - - 9,701 34,192
16,796 5,647 - 3,143 25,586
10,895 - - - 10,895
28,352 - - 800 29152
18,004 - - - 18,004
- - - 20,526 20,526
8,668 - - 3,430 12,098
- 11,257 - _ - 11,257
17,348 147 - 433 17,928
22,939 2,060 - 1,858 26,857
590,494 19,111 - 73411 683,016
399,252 (13,111) - {5,254) 380,887
46,121 1,846 278 19 48,264
- - - 20,000 20,000
46,121 1,846 278 20,019 68,264
445,373 (11,285) 278 14,765 449,151
445373 {11,265) 278 14,765 449,151
7,872,866 947,783 24,707 27,296 8,872,652
8,318,239 $ 936,518 $ 24,985 § 42 061 9,321,803

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
December 31, 2010
Employee Deposit & Meter
Retirement Refund Deposit
System Fund Fund
Assets:
Cash and equivalents $ 92,206 $ 66,376 $ 703,617
Investments 4,294,723 - -
Total assets $ 4 386,929 _$ 66,376 § 703,617
Liabilities:
Refunds and deposits payable $ - 5 66,376 $ 703,617
Due to other funds - - -
Total liabilities - " 06,376 703,617
Net assets:
Heid in trust for pension benefits & other purposes 4,386,929 Co- -
Unrestricted net assets - - -
Total net assets $ 4,386,929 $ - 3 -

()

—
(’ -
R

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

Employee Deposit & Meter
Retirement Refund Deposit
System Fund Fund
Additions:
Confributions:
Employer $ 418,123 § - $ -
Plan Members 192,400 - -
Transfer in - - -
Total contributions 610,523 - _ -
Investment income:
Net appreciation (depreciation) In value
of investments 9,378 - -
Interest 54,028 - -
Total investment income 63,406 - -
Deducations:
Benefits 678,983 - -
Refunds of contributions 314,857 - -
Administrative expenses 7,621 - -
Transfers out - - -
Total deductions 1,001,461 - -
Net increase (decrease) (327,532} ~ -
Total net assets ~ beginning 5,092,588 - -
Prior period adjusments (378,127) - -
Fund balance - beginning of year restated 4.714,461 - -
Total net assets - ending $ 4,386,029 § - % -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Duncan, Oklahoma (the City) complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units, The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpratations). Governments are also required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict
with or confradict GASB pronouncements. Although the City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements
issued after that date to its business-iype activities and enterprise funds, the City has chosen not to do so. The
more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are discussed below.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Duncan, Oklahoma is organized under the statutes of the State of Oklahoma. The City operates
under a Mayor-Council-Manager form of government and is governed by an five-member council. The City
provides the following services as authorized by its charter. general government, public safety (fire and
police), streets, public works (water, electric, sewer, and refuse), judicial, health and social services, culture,
parks and recreation, public improvements, planning and zoning.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial
statements present the activities of the City and its component units and trusts, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units and trusts, although legally separate
entities are, in substance, part of the City’s operations and so data from these units are combined with the
data of the primary government. Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet
the component unit criteria described above but do not meet the criteria for blending.

Blended Component Units/Trusts;

The Duncan Public Utilities Authority {DPUA) was created pursuant to a Trust Indenture, for the benefit of the
City of Duncan, Oklahoma. DPUA was established to finance, develop, and operate utility services and
facilities for the City of Duncan. DFUA is a public trust and an agency of the State of Oklahoma under Title
60, Oklahoma Statutes 1991, Section 176, et seq., and is governed by a board consisting of five council
members identical with the City Council. Any issuance of debt or obligation requires a two-thirds approval of
the City Gouncll. DPUA is exempt from State and Federal Income taxes. DPUA is reported as an enterprise
fund.

The Duncan Economic Development Trust Authority (DEDT) was created pursuant to a Trust Indenture, for
the benefit of the City of Duncan, Oklahoma., DEDT was established to finance, develop, and promote the
development of industry within the City of Duncan and the surrounding area. DEDT is a public trust and an
agency of the State of Oklahoma, under Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1991, Section 176, et seq., and is
governed by a board consisting of five council members identical with the City Council. Any issuance of debt
or obligation reqguires a two-thirds approval of the City Council. DEDT is exempt from State and Federal
Income taxes. DEDT is reported as an enterprise fund.

Discretely Presented Component Units;

The Duncan Industrial Authority (DIA} was created pursuant to a Trust Indenture, for the benefit of the City of
Duncan, Oklahoma.- DIA was established to finance, promote, develop, and maintain industry within the City
of Duncan and the surrounding area. - DIA is a public trust and an agency of the State of Oklahoma, under
Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1991, Section 176 to 180, and is governed by a board of Trustees, who is
appointed by the City Council. Any issuance of debt or obligation requires a two-thirds approval of the City
Council. DIA Is exempt from State and Federal Income taxes. The DIA’s financial statement is for the twelve-
month prior ended June 30, 2010. Copies of the audited financial statements can be obtained from the
Duncan Industrial Authority, Box 1468, Duncan, OK 73534,
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TCO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units (Continyed):

The Duncan Hospital Authority (DHA) was created pursuant to a Trust, for the benefit of the City of Duncan,
Oklahoma. DHA was established to provide financing for physical plant facilities, improvements, equipment,
and medical services for the purpose of providing or improving heaith care within the City of Duncan. DHA is
a public trust and an agency of the State of Oklahoma under Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1991, Saction 176,
et seq. Any issuance of debt or obligation requires a two-thirds approval of the City Council. DHA is exempt
from State and Federal Income taxes unless It has unrelated business taxable income. The DHA’s financial
statement is for the twelve-month prior ended June 30, 2010. Copies of the audited financial statements can
be obtained from the Duncan Hospital Authority, 1407 Whisenant Drive, Duncan, OK 73533.

The Duncan Parking Authority (DPA) was created pursuant to a Trust, for the benefit of the City of Duncan,
Oklahoma. DPA was established to finance and develop parking lots at 8™ and Willow, and 9" and Walnut,
within the City of Duncan. DPA is a public trust and an agency of the State of Oklahoma under Title 60,
Oklahoma Statutes 1991, Section 176, et seq., and is currently inactive and has been inactive for more than
ten (10) years.

The Main Street Duncan, Inc. was created as a non-profit corporation March 28, 1988, under the original
name Historic Duncan, Inc., under the provision of the non-profit corporation laws of the State of Oklahoma,
to preserve the heritage of the Duncan Downtown Historic District. The Main Street Duncan, Inc.'s financial
statement is for the twelve-month prior ended June 30, 2010. Copies of the financial statements can be
obtained from the Main Street Duncan, Box 112, Duncan, OK 73534.

The Duncan Area Economic Development Foundation (the Foundation) was created as a non-profit
corporation December 19, 1954, under the original name Duncan Industrial Foundation. Amended and
restated certificate of incorporation changed the name to Duncan Area Economic Development Foundation
on August 11, 1993. The Foundation promotes industry development and job creation within the Gity and
surrounding area. A majority of the Foundation revenues are derived from sales tax proceeds, which are
passed. through the Duncan Economic Development Trust Authority (DEDT). The Foundation’s financial
statement is for the twelve-month prior ended December 31, 2010. Copies of the audited financial statements
can be obtained from the Duncan Area Economic Development Foundation, inc., Box 1051, Duncan, OK
73534,

Joint Ventures:

The South Central Oklahoma Environmental Authority (SCOEA) was created pursuant to a Trust Indenture,
for the benefit of the Gity of Duncan, Oklahoma, along with the cities of Comanche and Marlow. SCOEA was
established to collect andfor receive from the public and private collectors of solid waste within the City of
Duncan and the surrounding areas. SCOEA Is a public trust and an agency of the State of Oklahoma, under
Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1991, Section 176, et seq., and a City of Duncan Councll Member serves as one
if its trustees.

For financial reporting purposes, SCOEA is considered to be a joint venture in which the City of Duncan has

no equity. Summarized information for SCOEA’s fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 has not heen received as
of our audit date.

18



()

()

1.

CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Joint Ventures (Continued):

The Stephens County Public Safety Communications Authority (SCPSCA) was created pursuant to a Trust
Indenture for the benefit of the City of Duncan, Oklahoma, along with Stephens County. SCPSCA was
established to provide emergency communication services to the City of Duncan and Stephens County.
SCPSCA is a public trust and an agency of the State of Oklahoma, under Title 60, Oklahoma Statutes 1991,
Section 1786, et saq., and a City of Duncan’s Police Chief and Fire Chief serve as two of the trustees.

For financial reporting purposes, SCPSCA is considered to be a joint venture in which the Clty has no equity.
Summarized information for SCPSCA's fiscal year ended June 30, 2010 has not been received as of our audit
date.

Complete financial statements of the South Central Oklahoma Environmental Authority and Stephens County
Public Safety Communications Authority can be obtained from Gerald Morris, 720 Willow, Duncan, OK 73533.

. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting

The City’s basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of net
assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed level of
financial information. Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records
and reported on the financial statements. Government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
accrual basis of accounting.

Government-wide Financial Statements — The statement of net assets and the statement of activities
display information about the City as a whole. These statements Include the financial activities of the primary
government, except fiduciary funds. The activity of the internal service fund is eliminated to avoid “doubling
up” revenues and expenses. The statements distinguish between those activities of the City that are
governmental and those that are considered business-type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type activities
at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each program or function of the City's governmental activities and for the business-type activities
of the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department
and therefore clearly Identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges paid by the.
reclpient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are restricted fo
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program and interest eamed on program
revenues are presented as general revenues of the city, with certain limited exceptions. The comparisen of
direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each business segment or governmental
function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City,

Fund Financial Statements - During the year, the City segregates transactions related to certain City
functions or activities In separate funds in order to ald financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the City at this more
detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major funds. Major
funds represent 10% of assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures of the corresponding element for all
funds of that category and is at least 5% of the corresponding element total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined or Is a fund that the government believes is important enough for financial
statement users to be reported as a major fund.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
' December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting (Continued)

Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a
single column. The internal service fund is presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund
statements. Fiduciary funds are reported by type.

Fund Accounting — The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds
according to their intended purpose and Is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. There are three categories of funds: governmental,
propristary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds — are used to accoun! for the government's general government activities.
Governmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basls of accounting, revenues are recognized when
susceptible to accrual {i.e., when they become measurable and avallable). "Measurable" means the amount
of the transaction can be determined and “"available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. The government considers all revenues
avallable if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when due,
and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments which are recognized when the obligations are
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

Sales and use taxes, gasoline excise taxes, cigarette taxes and motor vehicle taxes collected and held by the
state and county at year-end on behalf of the City are susceptible to accrual and are recognized as revenue.
Other receipts and taxes (franchise taxes, licenses, etc.) become measurable and available when cash is
received by the government and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entittements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual
criteria are met. Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other grant requirerents have been met.

The following are the Clty’s major governmental funds:

General Fund — is the general operating fund of the City. It accounts for all financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Projects Fund — accounts for the acquisition of fixed assets or construction of major capital
projects not being financed by proprietary or non-expendable trust funds. The City's capital projects fund
is the Capital Improvement Fund.

Other governmental funds of the City that are considered non-major funds include:

Special Revenue Funds - account for revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for
specific purposes (not including major capital projects). The following are the City's Special Revenue
Funds: Street and Alley, New Tax Fund, Cemetery Care, Library Gifts and Grants, Police Firing Range,
Uniform Allowance Police, Uniform Allowance Fire, CDBG, Police Reserve Academy, DARE, 911
Telephone, District Attorney Grant, Fire Donatlon-Fire Responder Program, Communications Trust,
Stimulus Grant and Hunting and Fishing.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting (Continued)

Debt Service Fund — accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by the
proprietary funds. At balance sheet date there is no known bond, coupon, or judgment indebtedness
outstanding. The City does not have a debt service fund.

Proprietary Funds — are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus and use the
accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when eamned and expenses are
racorded at the time liabilities are incurred. In compliance with the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 20 the City has elected to only apply Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB), Accounting Principles Board (APB) and Accounting Research Board (ARB) materials issued on or
before November 30, 1889 that do not conflict with GASB. Proprietary funds are classlified as enterprise.

Enterprise Funds — are used to account for those operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business where the intent of the governing body is that the costs {expenses, including
depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or
recovered primarily through user charges aor where the governing body has decided that the determination of
revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is necessary for capital maintenance, public policy or
management accountabllity. The following are the City's major enterprise funds:

Duncan Public Utilities Authority (DPUA) — accounts for activities of the public trust in providing electric
services, sanitation, water distribution, water production, pollution control, lakes, land appfication, landfill
services, and airport services to the public.

Duncan Economic Development Trust Authority (DEDT) — accounts for activities of the public trust in
financing and promoting economic development of industry within the Gity and surrounding area and
accounts for activities of the DEDT in its contract services with the Duncan Area Economic Development
Foundation.

Internal Service Funds — accounts for operations that provide services to other departments or agencles of
the City, or to other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis. The Employee Insurance, Self Insurance
and Workers Compensation Funds are self-insurance funds and are accounted for as a part of the City's
Internal Service Fund. Amounts needed to fund the estimated liabilities of these self-insurance funds are
transferred from the insured fund to the internal service fund perlodically during the year. The transfers are
reported as expenses in the Insured fund and as reimbursements in the Internal Service fund. Operating
expenditures are recognized In the internal service fund when expenses and benefits are accrued.

Fiduciary Funds — account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf
of others. Trust funds account for assets held by the government under the terms of a formal trust
agreement, Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not present results of operations or have a
measurement focus. Agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. These
funds are used to account for assets that the government holds for others in an agency capacity. The City's
fiduciary funds: Trust fund — Employee Retirement Pension; Agency funds —Meter Deposits and Deposit and
Refund.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity

1.

Deposits and Investments

Oklahoma Statutes authorize the City to invest in certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements,
passbooks, bankers' acceptances, and other available bank investments provided that all deposlits are
fully covered by approved securities pledged to secure those funds. In addition, the City can invest in
direct debt securities of the United States unless law expressly prohibits such an investment.

For financial statement presentation and for purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City's cash and
cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and certificates of deposit with
maturity date of three months or less. Debt instruments with a maturity date of more than three months
from date of issue are considered to be investments. Investments are stated at cost.

Restricted Cash and Investments

The restricted bond fund cash and investments are the result of financial requirements of bond issues.
Under the terms and provisions of the Bond Indenture, these special accounts and reserve funds are
maintained with the Trustee bank for the benefit of the holders of the bonds and are not subject to lien or
aftachment by any other creditors. These accounts and reserve funds are to be maintained so long as

~ any bonds are outstanding. Monies contained in the accounts and reserve funds held by the Trustee are

required to be contlnuously invested in authorized securities that mature not later than the respective
dates when the funds shall be required for the purpose intended by the trust indenture.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The City's financial instruments. include cash and cash equivalents, investments, accounts receivable and
accounts payable. The City's estimates of the fair value of all financial instruments do not differ materially
from the aggregate carrying values of its financial instruments recorded in the accompanying balance
sheet. The carrying amount of these financial instruments approximates fair value because of the short
maturity of these instruments.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the
end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due from other/due to other funds®. Material receivables in
proprietary-type funds and business-type activities consist of revenues earned at year-end and have not
received. Billed and unbilled utility accounts receivable comprise the majority of these receivables. They
are reported net of allowances for uncellectible accounts.

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide financial, some amounts

reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been eliminated or
reclassified. :
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

5. Receivables and Payables {Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial
statements as follows:

a. Internal balances — amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and
payables are eliminated In the governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of
net assets, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type
activities, which are reported as Internal Balances.

b. Internal activities — amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements are
eliminated in the government-wide statement of activities except for the net amount of transfers
between governmental and business-type activities, which are reported as Transfers — Internal
Activities. The effects of interfund services betwsen funds are not eliminated in the statement of
activities.

c. Primary government and component unity activity and balances-resource flows between the pritnary
government and the discretely-presented component units are reported as if they were external
transactions.

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental, proprietary fund and fiduciary categories is
reported as follows in the fund financlal statements:

e Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as Iinterfund
receivables and payables.

e Interfund transfers — flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not expected are
reported as transfers In and out.

Inventories

Inventories in governmental funds normally consist of minimal amounts of expendable supplies held for
consumption. The costs of such inventories are recorded as expenditures when purchased rather than
when consumed. Inventories in proprietary funds consist primarily of water meters, electrical supplies
and other materials held for subsequent use. Inventory is valued at cost, principally on a first-in, first-out
basis, but not in excess of market.

Capital Assets

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the proprietary
funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are
reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but are
not reported in the fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported
in the business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets and in the
respective funds. All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for
additions and retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values
as of the date received. The City maintains a capitalization threshold of $500 for the governmental and
proprietary funds.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)
C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

7. Capital Assets (Continued)

The City's Infrastructure consists of roads, bridges, culverts, curbs and gutter, streets and sidewalks,
drainage system, lighting systems and similar assets that are immovable and of value only to the City.
Such infrastructure assets acquired are capitalized in accordance with the requirements of GASB 34,
Improvements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add value of the
asset or materially extend an asset's life are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized in proprietary funds as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during
the construction phase of proprietary fund capital assets is reflected in the capitalized value of the asset
constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.

All reported capltal assets are depreclated except for land and construction in progress. Improvements
are depreciated over the remalning useful lives of the related capltal assets. Useful lives for infrastructure
were estimated based on the Clty's historical records of necessary improvements and replacement.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Govemmental Business-Type
Acthities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings 25 - B0 years 25-50 years
Building Improvements 10 - 50 years 10 - 50 years
Machinery and equipment 2 - 40 years 2 - 40 years
Infrastructure 25-50 years 25-50 years
Ufility system 25-30 years , 25-30 years

Deferred Charges

Loan origination fees are amortized ratably over the repayment period of the applicable bond using the
straight-line method,

Compensated Absences

It is the City’s policy to permit full-time, permanent employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
time after 8 months of employment. Sick leave is eamed by full-time, permanent employees upon hire.
Salaried employees are awarded compensatory time for work performed in excess of forty hours per
week. All City employees are entitled to payment for accrued vacation benefits upon termination with a
maximum of 520 hours and accrued compensatory time with a maximum of 40 hours. For firemen, each
year the current sick leave accrual in excess of 1,040 hours is paid as bonus compensation at 75% of
excess sick leave over 1,040 hours. Upon retirement, police officers receive compensation to be paid at
15% of total accrued sick leave up to a maximum of 1,040 hours.

Vacation and compensatory time is recorded when incurred and sick leave is recorded when vested. The
expense and related liability for vested vacation benefits and compensatory time is recorded in the
respective funds of the City or component unit. The liability Is computed based on pay rates in effect as
of December 31, 2010.

24



———
* 8

)

1.

CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

10, Long-term Obligations

1.

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to long-term liabilities associated with a fund are
determined by its measurement focus. All govemnmental fund types are accounted for on a spending
nimancial flow" measurement focus. This means that only current assets and current liabilities are
generally included on their balance sheets. Their reported fund balance {net current assets) is
considered a measure of "available spendable resources”. Governmental fund operating statements
present increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other
financing uses) in net current assets. Accordingly, they are said to present a summary of sources and
uses of "available spendable resources" during a period.

All proprietary funds are accounted for on a cost of services or “capital maintenance" measurement focus.
This means that all assets and liabilities {whether current or non-current) associated with their activity are
included on their balance sheets. Therefore, long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary
funds are reported as liabilities in the appropriate funds.

Net Assets/Fund Balance

In the government-wide financial staterment, net assets represent the difference between assets and
liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when
limitations on thelr use change the nature or normal understanding of the availability of the asset. Such
constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, laws or other governments,
or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the hierarchy of fund balances. The hierarchy
is based primarily on the degree of spending constraints placed upon use of resources for specific
purposes versus availability of appropriation. An important distinction that is made in reporting fund
halance is between amounts that are considered nonspendable (i.e., fund balance associated with assets
that are not in spendable form, such as inventories or prepaid items, long-term portions of loans and
notes receivable, or items that are legally required to be maintained intact (such as the corpus of a
permanent fund)) and those that are spendable (such as fund balance associated with cash, investments
or receivables).

Amounts in the spendable fund balance category are further classified as restricted, committed, assighed
or unassigned, as appropriate.

Restricted fund balance represents amounts that are constrained either externally by creditors {such
as debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments; or by law,
through constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation.

Committed funcd balance represents amount that are useable only for specific purposes by formal
action of the government’s highest level of decision-making authority. Such amounts are not subject
to legal enforceability (like restricted amounts), but cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
government removes or changes the limitation by taking action similar to that which imposed the
commitment, The City Ordinance s the highest level of decision-making authority of the City.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

11. Net Assets/Fund Balance (Continued)

Assigned fund balance represents amounts that are. infended to be used for specific purposes, but
are nelther restricted nor committéd. Intent is expressed by the governing body itsel, or a
subordinated high-level body or official who the governing body has delegated the authority to assign
amounts to be used for specific purposes. Assigned fund balances includes all remaining spendable
amounts (except negative balances) that are reported in governmental funds other than the general
fund, that are nelther restricted nor committed, and amounts In the general fund that are intended to
be used for specific purpose in accordance with the provisions of the standard.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. It represents the
amounts that have not been assigned to other funds, and that have not been restricted, committed, or
assigned to specific purposes within the general fund.

12. Resource Use Policy

It is in the City's policy for all funds that when an expenditurefexpense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted resources, including fund balances, are available, the City considers
restricted amounts to be spent first before any unrestricted amounts are used. Furthermore, it is the
City’s policy that when an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or
unassigned resources, including fund balances, are available, the City considers committed amounts to
be spent first, followed by assigned amounts and lastly unassigned amounts.

2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investments

Custodial Credif Risk

At December 31, 2010, the City held deposits of approximately $26,535,879 at financial institutions. The
City's cash deposits, including interest-bearing certificates of deposit, are entirely covered by Federal
Depository Insurance (FDIC) or direct obligation of the U.S. Government insured or collateralized with
securities held by the City or by its agent in the City's name.

Investment Interest Rate Risk

The City's investment policy limits investment to those with a maturity no more than three years from the date
of purchase, except for reserve funds, as a means of managing exposure to fair value losses arising from
increasing interest rates. The City discloses its exposure to interest rate risk by disclosing the maturity dates
of its various investments.

Investment Credit Risk
The City has no policy that limits its investment choices other than the limitation of state law as follows;

a. Direct obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full faith
and credit of the U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full faith and
credlit of the State is pledged.

b. Certificates of deposits or savings accounts that are elther Insured or secured with acceptable
collateral with in-state financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings
accounts in out-of-state financial institutions.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continued)

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

C.

d.

With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime
commercial paper and repurchase agreements with certain limitations.

County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue anticipation
notes, money judgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a
county, municipality or school district.

Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator and
debentures issued by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National Mortgage
Assaociation. -

Money market funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments
mentioned in the previous paragraphs (a.-d.).

For the six months ended December 31, 2010, the City complied, in all material respects, with the above
noted deposit and Investment restrictions.

Concentration of Invesiment Credit Risk

The City places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer. The City has the following of credit risk:
80% in Government backed securities ($21,751,280) and 20% in money market funds ($4,784,599).

'‘B. Uncollectible Accounts

The City's estimate of uncollectible accounts recelvable by fund and activity is as follows:

Duncan Public
Utlliies Authority

Elecfric 5 39,720
Water 100,000
Total $ 139,720
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continuedy)

C. Capital Assets

Primary Government capital asset activity for the year ended is as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $
Construction in progress
Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Buildings
Improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure
Totai depreciable assets

Less accumtlated depreciation
Net depreciable assets

Net governmental activities capital assets  §

Business-Type Activities:
Non-depreciable assets:
Land $
Consfruction in progress
Total non-depreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Utility Property
Unamortized water rights
Total depreciable assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Less accumulated amortization;

Net depreciable assets

Net business-type activities capital assets $

Balance Balance
6/30/10 Additions Disposals 12/31/10
654,496 % 171492 § - 3 825,088
4,463,808 . 4,227 443 236,365
5,118,304 171402 4,227 443 1,062,353
6,963,623 - 309,914 6,653,709
1,227,783 5762422 - 6,980,205
10,202,091 - 765,298 9,436,793
183,325,341 - 2,450 071 180,875,270
201,718,838 5,752 422 3,625,283 203,945,977
(154,008,321} (2,115,018) (2,364,332)  (153,759,007)
47,710,517 3,637404 1,160,951 50,186,970
52828821 $ 3808896 $§ 5388394 § 51,249,323
Balance Balance
6/30/10 Addltions Disposals 12/3110
1654194 $ - % - % 1,654,194
10,738,890 3,686,487 - 14,425,377
12,393,084 3,686,487 - 16,079,571
23,529,062 1,847,228 - 25,376,290
5,742 495 944,070 - 6,686,565
60 551,307 18 476,203 - 79,027,600
9A67 A68 - - 9,467,468
99,200332 21,267,581 - 120,557,923
(56.048,602) (5,724,984) - (61,773,586)
(7,810,662) (946,746) - (8,757,408}
35431,068 14 595,861 - 50,026,929
47824152 $ 18,282,348 § - $ 66,106,500
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Gontinued)

C. Capital Assets (Continued)

Balance Balance
Component Units: 6/30/10 Additions Disposals 12/31110
Non-depreciable assets: A
Land $ 661,886 $ - § - 8 661,886
Consfruction in progress - - -
- Total non-deprecizhle assels 661,886 - - 661,886
Depreciable assets:
Buildings and improvements 10,367,137 - - 10,367,137
Fumiture, fixtures and equipment 85,218 - - 95,218
Total depreciable assets 10,462,355 - - 10,462,355
Less accumulated depreciation: (1,258 ,628) - - (1,258,628)
Net depreciable assets 9,203,727 - - 8,203,727
Net business-type activities capital assets § 0865613 $ - % - $ 9,865,613
(\‘"' ) Depreciation expense was charged as a direct expense of the various programs.

D. Inter-fund Receivables and Payables

The City's inter-fund due from and due to other governmental funds do not have any balances as of
December 31, 2010, which have been eliminated in the statement of net assets presentation in accordance
with GASB 34.

E. Long-term Debt

The City's long-term debt is described below, segregated between the amounts to be repaid from
governmental activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

The business-type long-term debt of the financial reporting entity consisted of the following:

The Oklahoma Water Resources Board notes are secured by a pledge and assignment of revenues
derived by the Authority from its operation of the water and sewer systems serving the City of Duncan.
The notes are subject to the terms and provisions of the various loan agreements between the Oklahoma
Water Resources Board and the Duncan Public Utilities Authority. The terms of this agreement include
(1) a rate covenant and (2) the establishment and funding of debt service funds held by a local trustee.
For the year ended June 30, 2010, the City complied, in all material respects, with these covenants.

The foliowing were the Oklahoma Water Resources Board notes outstanding at December 31, 2010:
1998A Utility System Note Payable in the original amount of $1,333,508 payable without interest
together with an administrative fee of 0.5% per annum in consecutive semiannual Instalments

(ﬁ ) commencing February 9, 1998, and on or before the 15" day of February and August thereafter up to
e and including August 15, 2010. This note was paid off in the current year.
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continued)

E. Long-term Debt (Continued)

2002A Utility System Note Payabie in the original amount of $3,606,378.33 payable without interest
together with an administrative fee of 0.5% per annum in consecutive semiannual installments
commencing September 12, 2002, and on or before the 15" day of September and August thereafter
up to and including August 15, 2022.

2002B Utility System Note Payable in the original amount of $6,140,000 payable with an average
interest rate of 4.827% per annum in consecutive semiannual installments commencing November
12, 2002, and on or before the 15™ day of November and October thereafter up to and including
October 1, 2022.

2005 Utility System Note Payable in the original amount of $7.635,000 payable at an interest rate of
3.1% together with an administrative fee of 0.5% per annum in consecutive semiannual installments
commencing September 28, 2006, and on or before the 15" day of September and September
thereafter up to and including September 15, 2026.

2007 Utility System Note Payable in the original amount of $7,755,000 payable at an interest rate of
3.7% together with an administrative fee of 0.5% per annum on the outstanding balance of disbursed
funds in consecutive semiannual installments commencing September 15, 2008, and on or before the
15" day of September and March thereafter up to and including March 15, 2029, As of June 30,
2010, the Authority had drawn $6,757,072 of funds on this note.

2009 Utitity System Note Payable in the original amount of $4,130,000 payable at an interest rate of
3.63% together with an administrative fee of 0.5% per annum on the outstanding balance of
disbursed funds in consecutive semiannual installments commencing March 15, 2011, and on or
before the 15™ day of September and March thereafter up to and including September 15, 2030. As
of June 30, 2010, the Authority had drawn $2,694,665 of funds on this note.

2009A Utility System Note Payable In the original amount of $11,245,000 payable at an interest rate
of 3.29% together with an administrative fee of 0.5% per annum on the outstanding balance of
disbursed funds in consecutive semiannual installments commencing March 15, 2011, and on or
before the 15" day of September and March thereafter up to and including September 15, 2030. As
of June 30, 2010, the Authority had drawn $9,170,600 of funds on this note with a loan forgiveness of
$2,0600,000.

2009B Utility System Note Payable in the original amount of $4,620,000 payable at an interest rate of
5.15% together with an administrative fee of 0.5% per annum on the outstanding balance of
disbursed funds in consecutive semiannual installments commencing March 1, 2010, and on or
before the 1% day of September and March thereafter up to and including March 1, 2025.

2009C Utility System Note Payable in the original amount of $340,000 payable at an interest rate of
2.23% together with an administrative fee of 0.5% per annum on the outstanding balance of
dishursed funds in consecutive semiannual installments commencing March 15, 2011, and on or
before the 15" day of September and March thereafter up to and including September 15, 2030, As
of June 30, 2010, the Authority had drawn $106,178 of funds on this note with a repayment of
$70,314.
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continued)
E. Long-term Debt (Continued)
The following were the J.P Morgan Chase Bank notes outstanding at December 31, 2010

The Utillty System created a note with J.P. Morgan Chase as registered ownsr and BancFirst as
servicing agent in the original amount of $10,000,000 payable at an interest rate of 4.22% per annum,
secured with a pledge of 55/100™ of a 1 cent sales tax commencing June 1, 2007, and on or before
the 15" day of June up to and including June 1, 2017.

A contract payable with Waurka Lake Master Conservancy District was issued in the amount
$12,068,282 on January 10, 1978. The contract provides the City with a share of the District's water
supply and the City pays its share of the costs of the facllities and its operations to the District. The City
has pledged water revenues to secure this obligation and also has the ability to levy property taxes to pay
the obligation. The contract is payable in annual instaliments plus interest at 3.463%.

A contract payable with Waurika Lake Master Conservancy District was issued in the amount $9,318,240
on November 1, 2010. The contract provides the City with the remainder share of the District's water
supply and the City pays its share of the costs of the facilities and its operations to the District. The City
has pledged water revenues o secure this obligation and also has the ability to levy property taxes to pay
the obligation. The contract is payable in monthly installments of $56,364.65 plus interest at 3.89%.

The City is not obligated in any manner for the debt of its component units or trusts. The following is a
— summary of fong-term debt transactions of the component units and trusts of the City:

()

Retired,
Balance or Defeased Balance
Qutstanding During Outstanding Current
7110 Issued Year 12/3110 Portion
OWRE - 1998 $ = 53341 % - % (53,341) $ - $ -
OWRB - 2002A 2,253,986 - (90,159) 2,163,827 180,319
OWRB -2002B 4,440,000 - (275,000) 4,165,000 285,000
OWRB - 2006 : 5,999,992 - (135,887) 5,864,105 278,948
OWRB - 2007 8,369,322 80,431 (193,875) 8,255,878 321,112
OWRB - 2009 2,694,665 963,696 - 3,658,361 206,500
OWRB - 2009A. 7,170,600 1,058,364 - 8,228,964 449,800
OWRB - 20098 4,525,000 . - (100,000) 4,425,000 210,000
OWRB -2008C 35,864 214,258 (214,258) 35,864 13,600
JP Morgan Chase 2007 7,905,000 - {490,000) 7,415,000 1,010,000
Confracts payable 8,046,933 - (350,638) 8,596,295 362,781
Contracts payable - 9,318,240 - 9,318,240 319,554
Total $ 50,394,703 $ 11,634,980 $ (1,903,158) $ _ 60,126,534 $ 3,637,615

o
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2. DETAILED NOTES CONCERNING THE FUNDS (Continued)
E. Long-term Debt {Continued)

The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal, interest and administrative fees, for
long-term debt are as follows:

Business-Type Aclivitles

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total

2011 $ 3637615 § 2,174,561 $ 5,812,176
2012 3,759,766 2,124,813 5,884,579
2013 3,863,720 1,979,470 5,843,190
2014 3,965,749 1,829,746 5,795,495
2015 4,083,312 1,675,655 5,758,967

2016-2020 17 865,425 6,171,280 23,836,705

2021-2025 16,084 877 2,989,834 19,074,711

2026-2030 7066070 560,328 7,626,398
Total 60,126,534 19,505,687 79,632,221

3. OTHER INFORMATION

(A-) A. Risk Management

N The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employee health benefits; unemployment; and natural disasters.
The City has provides for the General Fund and Duncan Public Utilities Authority to account for and finance
its uninsured risks of loss. Under this program, these funds provide coverage for combined employee health
claims, based on plan participants at the beginning of the contract period, July 1, 2010. The City purchases
commercial Insurance for health claims in excess of the coverage provided by the funds and for other risks of
loss. Settled claims did not exceed the commercial coverage during the year. The City is liable for all
sustained unemployment claims.

The City manages these various risks of loss as follows:

Type of Loss Methed Managed Risk Retained
Accident and Health Self-insurance with claims processing by a third-party Claims not In
administrator. A stop-loss insurance contract executed excess of 125%
with an insurance carrier covers claims in excess of _ of expected
125% of expected claims. claims.
Injuries to employees Self-insurance with claims processing handled Full

(workers compensation)  Internally by the City with the City Attorney
representing the City in legal matters.

Physical property loss Al vehicles are covered with liability insurance with Partial
and natural disasters All vehicles purchased within the last two years having
comprehensive insurance coverage. A majority of
bulldings are commercially insured with a $1,000
(' ) deductible.
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3. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
A. Risk Management (Continued)

The City maintains a stop-loss policy for plans to limit risk associated with the plans. For insured programs,
there have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Management believes such coverage is
sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled claims have not exceeded the
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The General Fund and the Duncan Public Utilities Authority participate in this program and make payments
based on management's estimates of the amounts needed fo pay premiums and for prior and current year
daims. The City does not maintain a reserve for catastrophe losses. Those are budgeted within the each
fund. The claims lability is based on the requirements of Governmentai Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of
the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reaschably estimated.

Changes in the claims liability amount in six months ending December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Current Year
Beglnning of Claims and Balance of
Fiscal Year Changes In Claim Fiscal Year
Liability Estimates Paymenis End
Hesalth Care $ 160,937 § 1085441 § 1,082,061 § 173,317
Worker's Compensation 686,403 440 554 13,606 1,113,351

Total $ 856,340 $ 1525995 § 1,095667 $ 1,286,668

B. Contingent Liabilities

The City is a defendant in legal actions arising from normal governmental activities. Most of these actions are
covered by insurance. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not presently: determinable, management
believes that the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition
of the City.

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government, Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be
immaterial.

The DPUA contributed $3 million of their Electric Fund to the DEDTA for funds required to make matching low
interest loans to new industrial type business in Duncan. The DEDTA may make a loan from any of the
participating local lending institutions at the discretion of the trustees, but not to exceed 50% of the total
amount of the financing sources. If DEDTA should terminate, all money and property will revert back to the
DPUA. Interest earned by loans and investments after operating expense from the DEDTA are transferred to
the DPUA enterprise fund annually. The Trust Authority provides that the trustees will be the same as the
City Council except in the cases in which a possible conflict of interest may arise. Then alternates are
chosen.
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3. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

B. Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

DPUA entered into a 20-year contract with the Simmons Center Foundation, which commits the DPUA to
lease the Simmons Center faciliies to the Simmons Center Foundation for the sum of $1.00 per year.
Further, the DPUA is required to transfer $100,000.00 annually beginning August 3, 1994, with said transfers
continuing annually until August 3, 2008. Sald transfers are solely for the benefit of the Simmons Center
facilities. The DPUA also provides all utilities, other than electricity, natural gas, and telephone or other
communication devices, at a nominal charge of $10.00 per month. The DPUA further is required to maintain
casualty insurance on the facllities at full replacement cost

Contracts:

The DPUA has leased from the City its water, electric distribution systems and other income producing
assets, its rights to all improvements thereto, Its rights to any and all municipal services and utilities systems
of the City and its rights to operations and revenues there from.

The DPUA is under a year-to-year contract with a major electrical power supplier to purchase a minimum of
1,200 hours of peaking energy requirements for the Authority'’s use. The electricity purchased from this
source approximated 50% of the power purchased In this fiscal year. :

The DPUA Is under a 40-year contract with another power supplier to purchase all of the remalning electrical
power needs in excess of what can be provided by the primary supplier. The electricity from this source
accounts for the remaining power that was purchased.

. Employee Retirement System and Plans

City employees participate in three retirement pians, which are discussed below:

The City of Duncan, as the employer, participates in two statewide cost-sharing multi-employer defined benefit
plans on behalf of the policemen and firefighters; and the City contributes to the City of Duncan Employee
Retirement Plan {the “Plan”) which is a single employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the City of
Duncan Administration Board. The systems are funded by contributions from participants, employers, insurance
premium taxes and state appropriations, as necessary.

1. Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement Fund

All City police department employees hired before age 45 are covered by a statewide cost sharing multi-
employer defined benefit plan adopted under Oklahoma Statutes. This plan is operated and administered
by the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System {OPPRS). Under this plan, police department
personnel contribute 8.0% of base salary and the City contributes an additional 13.0%. The OPPRS
issue publicly available financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary
information for the fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Oklahoma Police Pension and
Retirement System, 101 NW 63™ Street, Suite 305, Oklahoma City, OK 73116-7335, or by calling 1-800-
347-6552.

The required contribution from the City for these plans was $128, 448, $286,567 and $276,273 for
December 31, 2010, June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009, respectively. The required contribution was fully
contributed. At December 31, 2010 the system held no related-party Investments of the City or of its
related entities.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

3. OTHER INFORMATION {Continued)
C. Employee Retirement System and Plans (Continued)
2. Oklahoma Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement Fund

All City fire department employees hired before age 45 are covered by a statewide cost sharing multi-
employer defined benefit plan adopted under Oklahoma Statutes. This plan is operated and administered
by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement System (OFPRS). Under this plan, fire department
personnel contribute 8.0% of base salary and the City contributes an additional 13.0%. The OFPRS3
issue publicly available financial reports that include financial statements and required supplementary
information for the fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension
and Retirement System, 4545 North Lincoln Blvd., Suite 265, Oklahoma City, OK 73105-3414, or by
calling 1-800-525-7461. ‘

The required contribution from the City for these plans was $125,663, $287,208 and $301,418 for
December 31, 2010, June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009, respectively. The required contribution was fully
contributed. At December 31, 2010 the system held no related-party Investments of the City or of its
related entities.

3. Defined contribution plan

Effective January 1, 1963, the City contributes to the City of Duncan Employee Retirement Plan (ERS)
which is a single employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the City of Duncan
Administration Board. All non-union full-time City employee, participate in the Plan. The Plan does not
lssue separate financlal statements. Under this plan, employees contribute 8% and the City contributes
10%. Benefits vest after twenty years of credited service, with normal retirement at age 65 with 5 years of
service and early retirement at age 55 with 10 years or more of service, or by Board approval.

The required contributioh from the City for these plans was $229,985 and $475,868 for December 31,
2010 and June 30, 2010, respsctively. The required contribution was fully contributed. At December 31,
2010 the system held no related-party investments of the City or of its related entities.

4. Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Actuarial Asset Accrued Unfunded
Valuation Value of Valuation Liability AAL Funded
Date Assets Basis (AAL)* {UAAL) Ratic

1/1/2006 $ 5,159,994 Actuarial  $ 19,077,027 $ 13,917,033 27.0%
11172007 5,430,783 Actuarial 19,375,887 13,945,104 28.0%
11/2008 5,614,047 Actuarial 20,284,876 14,670,829 2717%
1/1/2009 4,403,945 Actuarial 20,885,464 16,481,519 21.1%

* Coverad payroll s the total annualized rate of pay as of the valuation date based on actual pay for the
preceding year.
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Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

3. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Other Post-Employment Benefits

Plan Description: City provides post-retirement benefit options for health care, prescription drug, dental and
vision benefits for retired employees and their dependents that elect to make required contributions. The
benefits are provided in accordance with State law, police and firefighter's union contracts and the
Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA). The relationship for these benefits is not
formalized in a contract or plan document, only a few sentences in the administrative policy. These benefits
are considered for accounting purposes to be provided in accordance with a single employer substantive
plan. A substantive plan is one in which the plan terms are understood by the City and plan members. This
understanding is based on communications between the employers and plan member and the historical
pattern of practice with regard to the sharing of benefit costs. Substantially all of the government's employees
may become eligible for those post-retirement benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for
the City. As of December 31, 2010, approximately 37 retired employees are receiving benefits under this
plan,

Funding Poficy. The confribution requirement of the City is an implicit subsidy. The implicit subsidy is not a
direct payment from the employer on behalf of the member but rather stems from retiree contribution levels
that are less than the claims cost at retiree ages. Since claims experience for employees and non-Medicare
eligible retirees are pooled when determining premiums, these retired members pay a premium based on a

pool of members that, on average, are younger and healthier. There is an implicit subsidy from the employee

group since the premiums paid by the retirees are lower than they would have been if the retirees were
insured separately. The subsidies are valued using the difference between the age-based claims costs and
the premium paid by the retiree. The amount required to fund the implicit rate is based on projected pay-as-
you-go financing requirements. For six months ending December 31, 2010, the City contributed 0% to the
plan for retired employees (37 retirees). Plan members receiving benefits contributed $59,292, or
approximately 100 percent of the total premiums, through thelr required contribution of $160.75 per month for
retires-only coverage and $348.09 for retiree and spouse medical coverage, these amounts include dental
and vision coverage.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount
actuarially determined In accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARG represents a
level of funding that, If paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. GASB 45
requires entities with over 200 employees to have the actuarial veluation performed biennially. The City has
not performed the actuarial valuation of the OPEB cost and related OPEB obfigation for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and we were unable to determine the effect on the financial statements.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the prabability of eccurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results
are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs hetween
the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued llabllities and the
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2010

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The prior perlod adjustments are due to corrections of cash within the specific funds, The General Fund’s
peginning fund balance was adjusted in the amount of $665,073 from $960,717 to $1,625,790. The Capital
Improvement Fund’s beginning fund balance was adjusted in the amount of ($3,641,154) from $5,870,131 to
$2,228,977. The Duncan Public Utilities Authority’s beginning fund balance was adjusted in the amount of
($11,934,557) from $29,777,864 to $17,843,307. The Duncan Economic Development Trust's beginning fund
balance was adjusted in the amount of $7,514 from $10,028,798 to $10,036,312. The Internal Service Fund’s
beginning fund balance was adjusted in the amount of $556,962 from ($216,307) to $340,655. The Employee
Retirement System Fund’s beginning fund balance was adjusted in the amount of ($378,127) from $5,092,588 to
$4,714,461. Various special revenue fund’s fund balance were adjusted in the amount of $1,698,326 from
($984,370) to $713,956.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 5, 2012, which is the date the financial

statements were available to be issued and have determined that no additional information will need to be added
to the financial statements. :

37



()

)

CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
December 31, 2010



CITY OF DUNCAN

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

Revenues:
Cemestery revenues
Charges for services
Cigar taxes
Donations
Franchlse taxes
Grant revenues
Hotel/motel taxes
Interest

Intergovernmental programs

Fines and forfeits

Lease receipts

Library revenues

Licenses and permits

Miscellaneous revenue

Property taxes

Sales taxes

Use taxes

Relmbursements

Sale of surplus property
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
‘General government
Public safety

Highways roads & airports

Community development
Health and welfare

Cultural, parks and recreational

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over
{under} expendifures

Other financing sources {uses):
Gains/(losses) on investments

Operating transfers in {out)

Total other financing sources
Net changes in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

BUDGET (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010
(Unaudited) '
GENERAL FUND
Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Over (Under)
% 50,500 $ 50,500 % 58,173 § 7,673
29,310 29,310 32,543 3,233
- - 49,343 49,343
2,000 2,000 100 {1,900)
247,000 247,000 253,103 6,103
206,931 206,931 128,495 (78,438)
110,000 110,000 114,361 4,361
3,000 3,000 1,010 (1,990}
45,000 45,000 53,601 8,601
308,596 308,596 336,672 28,076
10,209 10,209 9,932 (277)
15,000 15,000 8,842 (6,158)
39,759 39,759 31,760 (7,999)
4,818 4,818 64,364 59,546
8,684 8,584 8,782 198
3,480,000 3,480,000 3,647,224 67,224
480,000 480,000 454,162 {25,838)
60,000 60,000 363,872 303,872
500 500 8,350 7,850
. 5,101,207 5,101,207 5,624,689 423,482
1,601,350 1,601,350 1,453,894 147,456
3,700,000 3,700,000 3,522,170 177,830
392,300 392,300 263,279 129,021
281,350 281,350 214,460 66,820
104,500 104,500 87,461 17,039
680,100 680,100 B77,646 2,454
6,759,600 6,759,600 6,218,910 540,690
{1,658,393) (1,658,393) (694,221} 964,172
1,664,900 1,664,900 427,016 (1,237,884)
1,664,200 1,664,200 427,016 (1,237,884}
6,507 8,507 (267,205) (273,712)
1,570,128 1,570,128 1,570,128 -
$ 1,576,635 % 1,676,635 § 1,302,923 $ (273,712)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANGE
BUDGET (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GOVERNNMENTAL FUNDS
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Over (Under)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 35,000 $ 35000 % - % {35,000)
Intergovernment programs 90,000 90,000 78,356 (11,644)
Cemetery revenues 6,100 6,100 14,512 8,412
Donations 500 500 3,388 2,888
Grant revenues , : 203,200 203,200 26,303 (176,897)
Interest - - - -
Licenses & permits 10,000 10,000 6,211 {3,789}
Special assessments 35,000 35,000 32,337 . (2,663)
Miscellaneous 700 700 87 {613)
Total revenues 380,500 380,500 161,194 ({219,306)
Expenditures:
Community development - - - -
General government 2,600 2,600 2,551 49
Public safety 87,747 87,747 49,106 38,641
Highways roads & airports ' 125,000 125,000 86,577 . 38,423
Cultural & recreation 28,575 28,575 12,689 15,886
Capital outlay 96,200 96,200 4,000 92,200
Total expenditures ' 340,122 340,122 154,923 185,199
Excess of revenue over :
{under) expenditures 40,378 40,378 6,271 {(34,107)
Other financing sources (uses):
Gains/(lossas) on investments - - - -
Operating fransfers in {ouf) 109,300 109,300 12,000 {97,300)
Net changes in fund balance . 149,678 149 678 18,271 (131,407)
Fund balance-beginning of
year - before restatement {084,370) {984,370) {984,370) -
Prior period adjustment - - 1,609,026 1,899,026
Fund balance-beginning of :
year - restated (984,370) (984,370) 714,656 1,699,026
Fund balance at end of year $ (834,692) § (834,692) $ 732,927 $ 1,567,619

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET (GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) AND AGTUAL

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010
(Unaudited)
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Budget Actual Over (Under)
Revenues:
Cigarette taxes $ - % - 24672 $ 24,672
Grant revenues - ' - 250,745 250,745
Interest : - “ 9,746 9,746
Sales taxes ) - - 1,772,687 1,772,687
Total revenues - - 2,057,850 2,057,850
Expenditures:
General government : - 5,000 5,000 1,966 3,034
Public safety 1,200 1,200 131,176 (129,976)
Cultural & recreational - - - -
Capital outlay 3,044,300 3,044,300 1,436,164 1,608,136
Total expenditures 3,050,500 3,050,500 1,669,308 1,481,194
Excess of revenue over
(under) expenditures {3,050,500) (3,050,500} 488,544 3,639,044
Other financing sources (Uses):
Gains/(losses) on investments - - 169,536 169,536
Operating transfers in {out) (5,495,400) {5,495,400) {1,700,180) 3,795,220
Net changes in fund balance - (8.,5_45,900) (8,545,900} (1,042,100) 7,503,800
Fund balance-beginning of . _
year - before restatement 5,870,131 5,870,131 5,870,131 -
Prior period adjustment - - (3,618,654) (3,618,654)
Fund balance-beginning of
year - restated 5,870,131 5,870,131 2,251,477 {3,618,654)
Fund bhalance at end of year (2,875,769) $ (2,675,769) § 1,209,377 $ 3,885,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010
{(Unaudited)

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (BAAP) for all governmental funds. The enterprise funds and internal service fund adopt budgets on the non-
GAAP basis wherein service fees, bond and note proceeds are recognized as revenue, principal payments on debt
and capital expenditures are recognized as expenses, and depreciation expense is not budgeted. Annual appropriated
budgets are not adopted for the agency funds. Budgetary data for enterprise funds, internal service, and permanent
funds are not presented in these financiat statements.

Prior to July 1, the City Manager (not an elected official) submits a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing July 1, to the Commissioners (elected officlals). Public hearings are held at regular or speclal meetings
{o obtain taxpayer input. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a budget resolution, The
operating budget, for all budgeted funds, includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing. Each fund's
appropriated budget Is prepared on a detailed line item basls. Revenues are budgeted by source. Expenditures are
budgeted by department which includes general government; public safety; highways, roads & airport; cultural &
recreational; and administrative; and included within each department it is divided by class as follows: personal
services, maintenance and operations, capital outlay, transfers, and debt service. This constitutes the legal level of
control. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at this level. A more detailed budget is used for operating
purposes. All budget revisions at the legal level are subject to final approval by the City Council. Within these control
levels, management may transfer appropriations without council approval. Revisions to the budget were made during
the year in accordance with the provisions of the Oklahoma Statutes. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

The City uses encumbrance accounting. Encumbrances are recorded when purchase orders are issued but generally
are not considered expenditures until liabilities for payments are incurred. At year-end, open purchase orders are
reviewed and payments are mads on those where the receipt of goods and services is eminent. The remaining
purchase orders (and encumbrances) are cancelled and reissued during the following year. There are no outstanding
encumbrances at year-end. '
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For Six Months Ending December 31, 2010

: Federal Program Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through . CFDA or Award Revenue Expend-
Grantor/Program Title Number Amount Collected itures
L1.S. Deparimant of Housing and Urban Development:
Passed through the Oklahoma Department of Commerce:
13960 SEECBG 09 81.128 250,000 250,000 250,000
Total of Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 250,000 § 250,000 $ 250,000

Note A - This schedule was prepared on an accrual (GAAP) basis of accounting consistent with the preparation of the
basic financial statements. ‘

Note B - The Clty recelved $22,487.35 from Contract 12380 CDBG SC 06 in the current year for expenditures reported
on the June 30, 2010 audit report.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
December 31, 2010
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CITY OF DUNCAN
DUNCAN, OKLAHOMA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

Internal Control — Bank Recongiliations

Condition: The City did not prepare accurate pooled cash reconciliations during the year. The City is not
clearing individua! deposits and checks from the bank statement to those transactions on the general ledger.
None of the transactions were cleared on a monthly basis and the ending procedure to balance the bank
account is just a manufactured number In order to balance to the trial balance. Transactions would hit the
general ledger bank account but never the actual bank and the same could be said about transactions hitting
the actual bank but never the general ledger. The City cannot recognize any old outstanding checks at the end
of each month, which could lead to checks that should be written off from prior years. Also, it appears that
some bank reconciliations are not being prepared timely. This finding was also noted in June 30, 2010.

Criteria: Internal controls should be in place that provides reasonable assurance that accurate pooled cash
bank reconclliations are being produced on at least a monthly basis and timely reconciliations are being
prepared on all of the other accounts.

Cause: The Clty’s internal contro! structure did not allow the pooled cash bank reconcillation to be prepared
properly and individual items were not cleared. The Clty's internal control structure did not allow for other bank
reconciliations to be prepared timely. This could cause and did cause the accounts to be misstated on the
financial statements which may affect many funds. This eccurred prior to current City management.

Effact or Potential Effect: Without controls in place such as the proper pooled cash bank reconciliation and
timely reconciliations, management isn't able to accurately balance the cash accounts with the trial balance.
Management may not know the accurate cash balance at any time during the year for the pooled cash account
and other accounts which could lead to insufficient charges. Additionally, this control deficiency has resulted in
a material misstatement to annual financial statements that could not be prevented or detected.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City strive to reconcile the pooled cash bank statements accurately
and clear individual transactions to allow for the control that was initially set up to actually take place. Also, the
City should strive to reconcile the other bank accounts timely.

Responsible Official’s Response: The government concurs with the recommendation and has currently started
reconciling pooled cash and other accounts to determine accurate balances.

Internal Control — Fund Balance Restatement

Condition: The City discovered that previously Issued financial statements contained matertally misstated fund
balances. This finding was also noted in June 30, 2010.

Criteria: Internal controls over financial reporting should prevent or detect errors resulting in the material
misstatement of fund balances.

Cause: The misstatement resulted from inadvertent errors in manual procedures involved in reporting routine
transactions, specifically the preparation of inaccurate bank reconciliations (see finding 10-2). The City's
system of internal control over financial reporting failed to detect the error timely. This occurred prior to current
City management.

Effect or Potential Effect: As a result of this condition, the City's system of interhal controls over financial
reporting did not prevent the error from being made or detect it prior to the issuance of financial statements
indicating a material weakness in the City’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Recommendation: Internal controls over financial reporting should be in put place that provide reasonable
assurance that material misstatements will be prevented or detected prior to issuance of financial statements.
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CITY OF DUNCAN
Duncan, Oklahoma

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
For Six Months Ended December 31, 2010

Responsible Official’s Response: The government concurs with the recommendation, and is currently striving
to get fund balances corrected without the need of restatement In the immediate future.

Internal Control — Use of Restricted Funds Improperly

Condition: The City purchased and sold investments related to restricted funds and used the proceeds in
restricted funds to purchase investments for unrestricted funds, resulting in insufficlent assets in the restricted
accounts, and non-compliance in the restricted fund. This finding was also noted in June 30, 2010.

Criteria: Investments related to restricted funds may be sold, but the proceeds must stay in the restricted fund.
The proceeds cannct be used to purchase investments for other funds.

Cause: The comingling of restricted investment funds resulted from inadvertent errors in manual procedures
involved in reporting routine transactions. Specifically, when investments were sold and reinvested often the
proceeds were transferred to unrestricted funds. The City’s internal control structure over the purchase and
selling of investments was insufficient to detect and correct the transfer of investments from restricted funds to
unrestricted funds. This occurred prior to current City management,

Effact or Potentlal Effect: As a result of this condition, the City is not in compliance with reservations of fund
balances that are legally segregated for a specific future use or which de not represent available expendable
resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriations or expenditure. The City's system of internal
controls over financial reporting did not prevent the error from being made or detect it prior to the issuance of
financial statements indicating a material weakness in the City’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Recommendation: The City should recognize investments related to restricted funds as such and not comingle
those Investments with others., We also recommend that the City transfer the investments from unrestricted
funds back to the origination of the restricted fund to be in compliance.

Responsible Official’s Response: The government concurs with the recommendation and is currently moving
the funds to correct on the financial statements and has stopped the comingling of these investments.

Compliance — Meter Deposit Monies

Criteria: As per Oklahoma State Statutes §11-35-102.1 — Disposition of proceeds from investment of
meter deposit funds — The investment of meter deposit funds by the municipality shall in no manner impair its
obligation to any person, firm or corporation, to refund in full any or all deposits theretofore or thereafter made.

Condition: The City has co-mingled all but $608,259 of its meter deposit funds into the pooled cash account of
the City. The meter deposlt liability is $703,617, which is considered customer monies. The other $95,357 is
included in the pocled cash bank account.

Cause: The City has included some of the meter deposit monies into pooled cash, which could be used to pay
for everyday operating expenses.

Effact or Potential Effect: As a result of this condition, the City may not be in compliance with Oklahoma State
Statutes if it is unable to refund, if needed, all of the meter deposits to customers.

Recommendation: The City should start depositing monies into the meter deposit bank account to equal the
total meter deposit liability.

Responsible Official’s Response: The City concurs with the recommendation, and will strive to deposit ali of the
monies equal to the meter deposit liability.
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